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In the choir Mr. Page directed attent.ion to the beautiful 15th century painted ceiling, which was discovered during the restora­tion by Sir Gilbert Scott. The cei,ling is div.ided into 66 panels, contaming heraldic shields representing the principal family connections of Edward III. Two panels in the centre represent the coronation of the Blessed Virgin. Every alternate panel contains the sacred monogram in Gre.ek characters. The north tra.ns.ept, a part of Abbot Paul ·de Ca.en's church, contains a monument to Thomas Legh Claughton, the first Bishop of St. Albans, who died in 1892. The rose windm1· "·as inserted by Lord Grimthorpe. 'The stained g]a.ss in the two Norman windows below depicts the four Latin doctors of the Church of SS. Ambrose, Augustine, Gregory, and Jerome. Here is also a curious painting· representing the Incredulity of St. Thomas, which fo·rmed one of a pair illustrating the history of the R.esurrection. The balluster shafts in the triforium are similar to those in the south transept, and two of them are remnants of the S.axon Church. 'l'he pulpit n:ea.r the north-east pier of the tower "·as designed by Mr. J. 0. Scott, and was presented to the ehurch by the Free­masons of Eng'land, ll"ho claim St. Alban as their patron. In Abbot Ramryge's Chapel there is some very interesting carving, and some of the panels eontain a ram "·ith a collar round its neck, inscribed with the letters "RYGE," forming a re bus upon the Abbot's name. The .screen of the High Altar is of clunch, and was compl.etild in 1484, and is considered one of th·e finest in this country of that period. With the exception of two, all the statues were d·estroyed in the 16th century. The restoration of this beautiful screen has been undertaken by Lord Aldenham, who has caused the niches to be re-filled with figures, of which there are 24 large and 41 smaller ones. The centre of the screen is occupied by a large crucifix, and immediately over the altar is a -representation of the Resurrection by Mr. Alfred Gilbert, R.A., 11·hich is not y.et completed. This screen is very similar to that at Winchester Cathedral, and it is considered to be the work of the same artist. The figures are cut in Mansfield Woodhouse stone, and the sculpture was executed by Mr. Harry Hems, of Exeter; the crosi.ers, sceptres, and swords are of hammered copper. It was before the High Altar here that the body of Eleanor, Queen of Edward I., rested in 1291, when on its way to W·estminster. The EJ.eanor Cross in the High Str.e.et 11·as pulled down about the year 1700, and a drinking fountain now occupies its place. In the south aisle of the Saints' Chapel is the tomb of Humphrey, Duke of Gloucester, protector of the kingdom during the minority of Henry VI. In front of the tomb is an ancient iron screen of the time of Eclward I., said to be the only trellis grille in England. A trap door gives access to some steps l-eading down to Duke Humphrey's vault, and one gentleman, more venturesome than the rest of the party, went down to get a view of the coffin. The shrine of St. Alban has been re-constructed from more than 2,000 pieces, of which it was composed, which were found built up into the walls of the Saints' chapel. They were carefully put tog·ether in 1872. The shrine proper, or feretrum, which was borne in the processions, stood on the top of the pedestal, and 11·as cove-red by a wooden canopy, which could be raised or lowered by means of a rope running through a pulley. The Watch Gallery on the north side is of carved oa.k, and iri it a monk was posted to keep continual guard over the shrine. The stairs are made of solid blocks of oak. The lower portion of the gallery contains cup­boards, or loclrers, in which are several relics and architectural fragments. Among the curiosities preserved here is a bridal garland, which formerly hung in the south aisl!'l of the nave in memory of a bride who died on her wedding day. After viewi~g 
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the handsome brnss of Abbot de la Mare, circa 13i5, one of the England, the visitors passed into the Lady Chapel, Abbot Hngh de Eversden (1308-26) in the Decorated the Dissolution this chapel was converted into a Grammar School. The school has been removed to the Abbey gateway, and the chapel thoroughly restored. The carvings. which are naturalistic, were executed by ::\[r . .Tohn Baker, of Kennington Park Road, and r,epresent the flora of the district. On leaving the Cathedral attention was direded to the fonr Evangelists at the western entrance, the fig·ure of St. Matthew heing a likeness of Lord Grimthorpe. The party, under the direction of J\fr. Page, next viewed the old gate house, erected in the time of Ed,Yard III., the Cloisters, and other remains, after which they proceeded to the Peahen Hotel for luncheon, at the conclusion of which was held 

THE ANNUAI, MEETING, 
over which General 8ir Henry Smyth, K.G.M.G., presided. Mr. John Barker -s.aid that owing to the death of the late Bishop of Oxford they were "·ithont a President. He thought it would he hest not to elect anyone to the office that clay, but to leave the matter in the hands of the Committee· to recommend a Pr,esident. They wanted someone who would take a personal interest in the ' work of the Society, and assist in its labours. The retiring Vice­Presid,ents were re-elected, and Sir Henry Smythe was elected a Vice-President on the proposition of Mr. R. H. Ba.rrett, seconded hy :Mr. G. Weller. Mr. Cocks proposed, nnd Mr. .T. Parker seconded, the proposition that Mr. E. J. Payne, M.A., should be elected a Vice-President, which •ra,; carried unanimously. In seconding the proposal, Mr. Parker reminded the meeting of Mr. Payne's long and valued services to the Society, and of his great lit.er,ary undertaking as the historian of America. Sit Henry Smythe thanked the Society for the honour they had conferred upon him. Their work was a praiseworthy study-he was too old to do much himself, but he should he pleased to do what he could. The Rev. E. D. Shaw was appointed Chairman of the Committee. All the retiring members were re-elected, and the name of Mr. R. H. Barrett was added to the list. '.rhe Hon. Sec,;. (Mr. J. Parker and Mr . .A. H. Cocks), the Treasurer (Mr . . T. \Villiams), and the Auditors ("Mr. T. Horwood and Mr. E. Wilkins) were also re-elected. '.rhe Treasurer (Mr .. J. Williams) then made his financial state~ ment, from which it was appar,ent that the Society was in a more flourishing condition than it had been for some time. They com­menced the year with a balance of £5:12:5, and had received .£2: 4 for the sale of books, £13: 15 for the launch provided at the last year's excursion, and £77:13 in subscriptions. Their pay­ments had be,en as follow:-Rent of Mus,eurn, £6; caretaker, ,£4: 15; Arclueological Index, £1: 13; Archmological Congress, £1; printing <<Records/' £.10; expenses of last year's excursion, ,£9:8; 'l'reasurer, £5; commission on subscriptions collected, ,£3:16; snndri,es, carriage, .stamps, nnd insurance, "£3: 9:1; leaving a balance in hand of Jl14: 3:4. They had 21 life members, 15 compounding me m hers, 152 annual subscribers, and 6 honorary m em hers, making a total of 194 members. Mr. Parker, in his report, said that he regretted nothing- had been done towards the preservation of the old Church of St. :M:ary, at Stoke Mancleville. Mr. Willinms had undertaken to make on the spot as to what steps could be taken towards preservation of the building·. The Archdeacon of Buckingham recommended thB appointment of a small Coml.nittee to go the matter. It we~,; a work which their Society ought to 
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interest itself in, for surely one of their objects 1m" the preserva­tion of· such an object of antiquity as an old parish church. :Mr. Bradbrook had pr,epared a report on the question of the tran­scription and publication of the Parish Regisl:ers of the Count;r, which would be left to the consideration of the Commilte,e, con­sisting of Mr. Cocks, l\Ir. Sha11·, and Mr. Braclbrook. 3!r. Parker then explained the provisions of "'rhe Ancient Monuments Pro­tection "~et, 1900," and particularly called attention to the Act recognising· the principle that a local authority, such as a County Council, may be called upon to undertake the care of local anti­
~quarian objects of recognised importance. }Jach member of the Committee had been requested to report to him a11~- object which came under his observatiorl, und 11·hich preserved nnder the provisions of the Act. Mr. Parker next aUention to Mr. Keyser's learned nnd beautifully-illustrated 011 "The N ornwn Doorways of Bucks," to whom the thank,; Society 11·ere due. He then referred to the papers that the forthcoming number of "The Records." Mr. A. H. Cocks said that hEI had ahmy:; on thoc;e occasions something to say about their Museum, which would never take its proper place until they had a suitable room in 1rhich to keep and arrange their collections; but a:< it IYF<S the moment to solicit contributions ,for the purpose, they must the best they could for the present 11·ith the accommodation had. As f>u· as the building was concerned, it was no;1· in a. sound conditiorl. In com;cqnence of his having removed to a new honte, he had not been able to complete his account of the ancient Pile Dwellings at Hedsor and (·he relics discovered during the 'excavations. He hoped, however, to be able to do so in the course of a few more months. He had purchased a good case to contain antiquarian objects, but 11·hen it arrived at Ayle:;bury they found they could only just manage to get it into their room by :;omething less than half-an-inch. It was a really good case, and would hold specimen:; from the Hedsor Pile Dwellings and also the specimens of palooo­lithic aml neolithic relics given them by Mr. Goolden, •drich were a very handsome addition to their Museum. In conclusion, he proposed a vote of thans to Mr. Goolden for his gift, 1rhich 11·as seconded by Mr. \'V'illiams, and carried unanimously. The meeting confirmed the Committee's appointment of Mr. Cocks, Mr. Sha>~", and Mr. Bradbrook as a Sub-Committee to take into consideration the question of the publication of the ancient Parish Registers of the County, of which theJCe are about 200 in existence. A conversation ensued upon the subject, and it was the general opinion that there should be a separate organization for transcribing and publishing the Pa.rish Registers, and that the annual subscription on it's behalf should not exceed 10s. 6d. The following w,ere elected members of the Society: -Rev. C. H. Parez. Mentmore; Mr. and Mrs. George \Villson, vVendover; and Mr. F. C. H. Jones, Wycombe. A vote of thanks was passed to Sir Henry Smythe for presiding, on the proposition of Mr. Cocks, and the Chairman having acknowledged the compliment, the proceeding's terminated. The me m hers then, under the guidance of Mr. Page, proceeded to the Herts County Museum, where some time was spent in examining the objects of interest exhibited in the various rooms, but time did not allow of a minute examination of all the relics of antiquity which have found a home in this excellently-arranged Museum. On the way to Verulam the visitors stopped a few minutes at the old Clock Tower, el'ected in 1410, and in which the Curfew BeH had continued to he rung .every eve•ning till 1860. Passing southward along the lower part of the city, over the River Ver, the party traversed a raiRecl causew8y with a deep fosse on each side, then crossed a corn field into a plantation 
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<Jf trees bounded by " broad vallum, in order to get a good view of the outer wa 11 of l{omano-Hritish tmnr of V,erolamium. 'l'he wall >vas sh'ucture constructed of rubble, chalk, .and flint, 'l·ith pol'tion bonded by three ro>YS of Roman bricks.· The ancient \\' ,1tling Street originally ran through Ver·olamium, but its direci ion has since been diYerted so as to pass through the more modern city of St. Albans. Its former course, howeYer, can ,easily lw traced, as som€ of the hees ·which grcT\~ on its l1LJ1'gil1 still exjstent iD a long ro"- acToss the centre of a meadow land, and 11·ere pointed out to the visitors by as they wended their 11·ay to the ancient Churdr which stood to the north of Watling Street. was er'ected at the same time as St. Peter's and circa ll48, by Ulsinus, or Ulsic, the 6th Abbot.of St. to whom the present town of St. Albans may be considered to m1·e its origin, as he laid out the pTincipal streets and estahlisl1ed a market. The visitors spent some tinw in exam incng the points of interest in St. Michael's Church, which remains of ar'chitecture ranging from the Saxon and Norman to the Perpendicular period. 'l'he building originally consisted of n nnd chancel, to >drich 11·ere subse-quently added and a chantry chapel, dedicated to Our Lady, on LoTd Grimthorpe bnilt the present vestTy and tm1·er Jacobean pulpit is of oak, finel~· carved, and still iron framework in 11·hich formerly stood the honr-glass. the modern altar is an ancient altar-slab, 11·ith the crosses incised upon it. It \\·as found during the the Lady Chapel. In the north 1Yall of the sanctuary, in a recess, is the monument to the famous chancellor yet greate1· philosopher, Hncon, 11·ho r.e,sided a! Gorhambury, some Yestigos of which mansion are still to be SHell near the modern residenoe of the Earl of Yerulam. Bacon is represented serttecl, nnd >~·ith his hat on. In the vestry is preserYed a curious picture that >YaR at one time in the chancel arch. It repre~ents the judg·ment, and the figures of different persons are seen rising· stone coffins, such as ""~ere in use during the 14th and l;)th centuries. Soon after leaving S. Micha,el's Church the party separaied in order to ea tch tlwi r trn ins home; but before doing so Mr. Parker took occasion to thank :Mr. Page very heartily for his great kind­ness in accompanying them during the day, and placing at their service the vast stores of knowledge \Yhich he has gained respecting the Abbey. and the other places 11·hich had been visited. Mr. Page has devoted years of study and research to the history and antiquities of the city and its cathedral, and also to the remains of the ancient British, Roman, and Saxon Verulam, and the. members of the Society were indeed very fortunate in being able to have the benefit: of vnlnable serYices on the occasion of their visit. The thank~ the members were also due to :Mr. Williams for the excellent manner in which the excursion 11·as organized. 
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VINEY, J. ELLIOTT, 1, Creed Lane, Ludgate Hill, London 
WATKINS, G. 
WATSON, ~Miss, Princes Risbnrongh G., The Plantation, Amersham W., Springfield Lodge, High Wycombe 
WETHERRD, El Itobado, Teneriffe Seymour Court, 
WmTCO~IBE, Rev. H.. Hard wick Rectory, Aylesbury 
WrLKINs, E., Aylesbury 

DowNs, R. S., 5, Castle Terrace, Wy­combe Gounu, H., Sandcroft, Redbill, Surrey HoPE, W. H. ST. JOHN, ]l.f.A., Society of Antiquaries, Burlington House, London, W. 

WrLLIAMs, JoHN, Bank House, Ayles­burv 
W!LLIAThis, Rev. 'l'., Aston Clinton Rectory, Triug 
\Vu,LIA>rs, W. '1'. VAUGHAN, The Abbey, Bourne End, Great Mar low Wn,csoN, G., \Vendover WrLr,soN, ?\Irs., Wendover WINTER, Rev. S. ::\L, Dial C!o,e, Great '\Iar·low \Voou, I-IE~In- J. T., JnngHst Cottage, near· High Wycornbe Woon, liev. Canou, Hill House, Babbacombe, 'l'orquay Woon, R S., High Wycombe 
WYATT, Rev. C. F., Bronghton Reetory, Baubnry 
YcLE, Rev. H. W., D.O.L., The Rectory, Wacldesdon 

J\IACRAY, Rev. W. D., F.S.A., Duck­lington Hectory, \Vitney, Oxon 
PARKER, JA3IES, 'l'be Turl, Oxford 
SuMMERS, Rtw. H. W., 12, Carnarvon Road, Reading 


